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WHO’S THE CAPTAIN

HOW TO BID SENSIBLY IN ONE 

LESSON

CAPTAIN PRINCIPLE

Every sensible auction should proceed until a (the first) 

limit bid is made; at that point the partner of the limit 

bidder becomes the captain for the remainder of the 

auction. Then the captain’s job is to “steer the 

(partner)ship to the final contract.

Typical Limit Bids

Opening 1NT = 15-17 HCP

Raise of Opener’s Suit; i.e., 1S – 2S = 6-9 Points

COMMON LIMIT BIDS

No Trump Bids – Opening or Responding

Raise of Partner’s Suit

Rebids of the Same Suit – Jumps or Non-jumps

Preemptive Bids – Weak 2’s, Opening 3’s, Jump Overcalls. etc.

Preference Bids – giving partner a simple preference or a jump 

preference (when typically he has bid 2 suits)

Some Passes

Jump Response to a Takeout Double

Preference Bids

1H – 1S – 2C – 2H        Simple Preference  (6-9 pts.)

1H – 1S – 2C – 3H        Jump Preference (10 – 12 pts.)

Opponents Not-Passing

1H – 1S – P – 2S 

3C - P  - 3H               Simple Preference  (0 – 5 pts.)

Example Hand

S  XXX

H  XXX

D  XXXX

C  KXX

1H – 1S – P – 2S 

3C - P  - 3H               Simple Preference  (0 – 5 pts.)
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Examples of Non-Limit Bids

1H - 1S - 2C

1C – 1H – 1S

1S – 2C – 2H

1S -- 2C – 2H -- 3D

No Captain Chosen Yet

Captain’s Job/Options

• Place the Final Contract

• Ask questions to elicit more detailed Information on

the strength (either min or max) and/or distribution

of the limit bidder’s hand

• Then, ultimately place the final contract 

Limit Bidder, of course, must respond intelligently with good judgment 

to any questions posed by the captain. Also, the Limit Bidder must 

know which bids are forcing (F) and which bids are non-forcing (NF).

EXAMPLES

1NT – 2NT (NF)?

1S – 2S – 2NT (NF)?

1S – 2S – 3C (F)?

1NT – 2D (Transfer) -2H – 3D (F)?

Opponents Passing

Opponents Bidding (NV vs. Vul.)  

2H – P – 4H – 4S

5H??

Example Hand

1NT – 2D (Transfer) -2H – 3D (F)?

S  X

H  KQ10XX

D  AXXX

C  JXX

Examples of Non-Sensible Bidding

1S – 4NT?

2NT – 3NT – 4NT?

1C – 1H – 1NT – 2C – 2NT?

Opponents Passing

Example Hand

S  X

H  KQXX

D  JX

C  J10XXXX

2 Corollaries

• Closeout (Shutout) Bids

• Gerber – Extended Use
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#1 Closeout Bids

Only a captain can make a shutout bid

Last Bids are NOT Shutouts

1H – 4H;     1D – 1H – 4H;    1C – 4S

Last Bids ARE Shutouts

1NT – 3NT;   3D – 3NT;   3C – 4S;   1S – 2S – 4S;   1C – 1H – 1NT – 2H

#2 Gerber (Extended Use)

A  4C Bid is Gerber Under 2 Conditions: 

• Jump to 4C

• Only by a Captain (after a limit bid has occurred)

Handles all sequences following opening 1NT and 2NT, 

Including Stayman and Jacoby Transfer Sequences

Examples (Opponents Passing)

2C – 2H – 2NT – 4C;   1NT – 2H(T) – 2S – 4C;   

1S – 2S – 4C;   2H – 4C

Non - Gerber Examples

1S – 3S – 4C     No Jump;  4C is a Cue Bid

1NT – 2C – 2S – 4NT    4NT is Quantitative, as 4C Gerber 

is available
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